MUNICIPALITY OF ASSIGINACK

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
To Be Held Virtually, via ZOOM
Tuesday, July 7th, 2020 at 3:00 p.m.
Council’s Regular Meeting Agenda

For consideration:

1. OPENING

a) Adoption of Agenda

b) Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

a) Regular Virtual Council Meeting Minutes of June 2, 2020.
b) Special Virtual Council Meeting Minutes of June 17,2020.

4, DELEGATIONS

a) None

5. REPORTS

a) None

6. ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS

a) Accounts for Payment: General: $343,267.42 Payroil: $ 44,916.21
b) Tax Write Down due to Demolition
¢) 2019 Financial Statements Approval



d) Rogers Creek Bridge Proposal

7. INFORMATION ITEMS
a) PHSD: Beach Inspections
b) Township of McDougall: DSABS and Policing
¢} Town of Bracebridge: COVID Financial Assistance
d) City of Sarnia: Long Term Care Homes Conditions
e} Municipality of Mississippi Mills: Broadband Access

8. BY-LAWS

a) By-law # 2020-08 Licensing Taxi Cabs
b) By-law # 2020-09 Regulating Backyard Chickens

9. CLOSED SESSION:

None

10. ADJOURNMENT



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

The Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack was held and hosted by way of a Zoom Conference call from the
Council Chambers on Tuesday, June 2™, 2020 at 3:30 p.m.

Present: All via Zoom
Mayor Dave Ham
Councillor Dave McDowell
Councillor Rob Maguire
Councillor Christianna Jones
Councillor Hugh Moggy

Staff: All via Zoom
Alton Hobbs, CAO, Deputy Clerk
Deb MacDonald, Treasurer
Ron Cooper, Public Works Superintendent
Freda Bond, Tax and Utilities Manager
Jackie White, PEC

OPENING:

#100-09-2020 D. McDowell - H. Moggy

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack be opened for business at 3:30 pm, with a quorum of members
present virtually, with Mayor Ham presiding in the Chair.

CARRIED

AGENDA:

#101-09-2020 C. Jones - R. Maguire

THAT we confirm the attendance of all the Members of Council electronically and
adopt the agenda for this meeting be accepted as circulated.

CARRIED

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:

NONE

Page 1 of 4



ANNOUNCEMENTS:

That Councillor Moggy extended thanks to Jackie White for the assistance she
gave him to get connected on Zoom.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES:

#102-09-2020 H. Moggy - D. McDowell
THAT the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of May 5, 2020 be accepted.

CARRIED

DELEGATIONS:
NONE

REPORTS:

#103-09-2020 R. Maguire - C. Jones
THAT we accept the CAO’s Report on Urban Chickens, dated May 28, 2020 and
allow the pilot project to proceed.

CARRIED

ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS:

#104-09-2020 D. McDowell - H. Moggy
THAT Council authorizes the following Accounts for Payment:

General: $216,974.14

AND THAT the Mayor and administration be authorized to complete cheques
#29875 through #29899, #29905 through #29936 as described in the attached
cheque register report.

CARRIED
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#105-09-2020 C. Jones - R. Maguire
THAT Councii authorizes the following Accounts for Payment:

Payroll: $39,438.12

AND THAT the Mayor and administration be authorized to complete cheques
#29901 through #29904, #29871 through #29874 as described in the attached
cheque register report.

CARRIED

#106-09-2020 H. Moggy - D. McDowell

THAT we authorize the volunteers of the Agricultural Society to paint the
fairgrounds pavilion under the supervision of Alice Pennie and confirm that we
will supply the necessary materials.

CARRIED

#107-09-2020 C. Jones - R. Maguire

THAT we advertise for up to 4 members of the community to apply to join an
Assiginack 150 Planning Committee, whereby members will be appointed at our
July Meeting.

CARRIED

#108-09-2020 D. McDowell - H. Moggy
THAT we renew our annual comprehensive insurance package with Knox
Hutchinson MIS for an annual premium of $48,067 plus applicable taxes.

CARRIED

#109-09-2020 R. Maguire - C. Jones

THAT we authorize the installation of a water service on private property
pursuant to the attached sketch and conditions contained therein.

CARRIED
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INFORMATION ITEMS:

#110-09-2020 H. Moggy - D. McDowell
THAT we acknowledge receipt of the following correspondence items:
a) Librarian’s 2020 Report
b) Library Re-opening procedures
c) CPAC: AMO Changes to CPAC Police Service Boards
d) 2020 Hazardous Waste Day
e) Municipality of Huron Shores: Regional Broadband
f} Manitoulin Health Centre: Thank You
g) Fixing Qur Felines: Thank You

CARRIED

BY-LAWS:

#111-09-2020 D. McDowell - R. Maguire

THAT By-law #20-07, being a by-law to lease private property in Manitowaning
for the purpose of a community garden be given first, second and final readings
and enacted in Open Council.

CARRIED

CLOSED SESSION:

NONE

CLOSING:

#112-09-2020 R. Maguire - D. McDowell
THAT we adjourn until the next regular meeting or call of the Chair.

CARRIED

David Ham, MAYOR Alton Hobbs, CAO/DEPUTY CLERK

3:45 p.m.
These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until
approved by Council.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
The Special Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of

Assiginack was held and hosted by way of a Zoom Conference call from the
Council Chambers on Tuesday, June 17, 2020 at 9:05 a.m.

Present: Mayor Dave Ham — via Zoom (9:15am)
Councillor Dave McDowell — via Zoom
Councillor Rob Maguire — via Zoom
Councillor Christianna Jones — via Zoom

Staff: Alton Hobbs, CAO, Deputy Clerk — via Zoom
Deb MacDonald, Treasurer

Absent: Councillor Hugh Moggy

OPENING:

#113-10-2020 C. Jones - D. McDowell

THAT the Special Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack be opened for business at 9:05am, with a quorum of members
present electronically, with Deputy Mayor Rob Maguire presiding in the Chair.

CARRIED

ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS:

#114-10-2020 R. Maguire - C. Jones

THAT We support the efforts of M.P.P. Jill Andrew to have the Ontario Ministry of
the Attorney General appeal an Ontario Court of Appeal decision that makes
voluntary intoxication a legitimate defense in sexual assault and violent crime
cases;

AND THAT we register our strong displeasure that such a defense exists:

AND FINALLY THAT we circulate this resolution to the Manitoulin Municipal
Association and with its support to the Federation of Northern Ontario
Municipalities our M.P.P. and the Premiere for support.

CARRIED

CLOSING:

#112-09-2020 R. Maguire - D. McDowell
THAT we adjourn until the next regular meeting or call of the Chair.
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CARRIED

Rob Maguire, DEPUTY MAYOR Alton Hobbs, CAO/DEPUTY
CLERK

9:20 am
These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until
approved by Council.
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System:
User Date:

Rangas:

Vendor ID
Vendor Name
Cheque Date

Sorted By:

Cheque Number

Distribution Types Included: All

09/06/2020 B:4E6:25 AM
09/06/2020
From: Teo:
First Last
First Last
First Last

The Township of Assiginack
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT

Payables Management

From:
Chequebook ID First
Cheque Number 0029941

To:

Last
0029962

Page: 1
User ID: deb

[ charo: | co29941 fpate: | 08/06/2020  |Vendor:| B.n.M.M.-BRENDAN ADDISON MOBILE MECHANICI | Amount] 514,227 68
Invio: 0771 InvDesac: fg-int'l tiressinstall. serv. InvAmt: $11,585.83
InvNo: (756 InvDesc: fd-freightliner serv.call InvAmt: $604.55
InvNo: (1772 InvDasc: fd-int'l service call Invamt: $1,138.95
InvNe: 0773 InvDesc: fd-int'l service call InvAmt: $898.35

| chao: | 0029942 |pate: | 08/06/2020  |vendor:| peacom 1macEs | Amount { $531, 10
InvNo: 1923 InvDese: signage-beach Invhmt : $531.10

| chawo: | 0029943 |pate: |  08/06/2020  |Vendor:| BEAMISH CONSTRUCTION INC [Amount] 53, 612.69]
InvNo: 13104-023042 InvDesc: cold mix InvAmt: 53,612.69

| chawo: | 0029944 |pata: |  oB/06/2020  |Vendor:| By's s appIsons | Amount { 5259, 90
InvNo: 112087 InvDesc: fg-int'l annual insp. cert InvAnt: $129.95
InvNo: 112089 InvDaec: fd-freightliner ann.insp.cert. InvAmt: $129.95

[ chawo: | 029945 |pate: |  08/06/2020  [vendor:| ciTy OF GREATER SUDBURY | Amount | 5471.20]
InvNo: (G104673 InvDesc: march recycling material InvAmt: 5471.30

| chatio: | 0029946 |pate: |  o0a/p6/2020  |Vendor:| compuTREK | Amount { 579405
InvNo: 21542 InvDesc: may offiste backup storage InvAmt: $17.74
InvNo: 21450 InvDase: june remote server mgmt InvAmt: $716.31

| ChaNo: | 0029947 |pate: |  08/06/2020  |vendor:| geErry STRONG | Amount { 5307. 70
InvNo: JUNE 8 2020 Invbesc: pidg insp/plan.mileage InvAmt: $307.70

| charo: | 0029548 |pate: |  0sso6/z020  vendor:] grn EnviroWMENTAL INC 2019 [amount] 53,907 . 30}
Inviie: GPOOOODD3593 InvDasc: may recycling transport InvAmt: 53, 907.90

ChaNo: | 0029949 |pata: | 08/06/2020  |Vendor:| HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. [ Amount.] 56,319.59]
InvRo: MAY 22 2020 DOCKS InvDesc: marina docks Invhmt: $99.78
InvHo: MAY 22 2020 LIBRARY InvDesc: library InvAmt: $385.41
InvHo: pMAY 22 2020 TENNIS InvDesc: tennis courts InvAmtt $28.96
InwHo: MAY 22 2020 INFO InvDeac: info booth InvAmt: $34.28
InwNe: MAY 22 2020 SHOWERS  InvDesc: marina showerhouse InvAmt: 528.96
InwHo: MAY 22 2020 SS WTP InvDesc: =z wtp Invamt: $1,462.40
InvHo: MAY 22 2020 ARENA InvDesc: arens InvAmt: $858.89
InvHo: MAY 22 2020 LITES InvDesc: street lites InvAmt : $602.84
InvHo: MaY 22 2020 PO/BNK InvDesc: po/bnk InvAmt: $439.58



System: 09/06/2020 B:46:25 AM The Township of Assiginack Paget 2
Usex Dates 03/06/2020 CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User ID:  dab
Payables Management

InvMo: MAY 29 2020 LAGOON InvDesc: lagoon Iowhst: $2,372.39
InvNo: MAY 2B 2020 PW InvDaesc: pw-microfit InvAmt: $6.10

chaNe: | 0029950 [pate: | 08/06/2020  |Vendor:| MANITOWANING FRESHMART [ Amount | 555.78]
InvNo: Q0568086 InvDesc: pec-bingo prizes (seeds) InvAmt: $24.14
Invie: 00569253 invDesc: admin -tea InvAmt: $15.48
InvHo: 00570705 InvDesc: admin-water refill InvAmt: $3.99
InvHo: 00570669 InvDesc: admin-kitchen supplies Inwhmt : $6.76
InvNo: 00570258 InvDesc: admin-tea InvAmt: $4.79

Chalo: | 0029951 |pate: |  omsoe/2020  |Vendor:| MinisTER oF FINANCE | Amount { 51,125.57]
InvNo: MAY 2020 EHT InvDesc: may eht remittance InvAmt : 51,125.57

[ chawo: | oo29952 |pate: |  omsos/zo2o0  |vendor:| worThERM 91 Amount { 5344, 27]
InvNo: 21216-06012020 InvDesc: june 91l dispatch InvAmt : 5344.27

| chamo: | oo29953 |pate: | oasc6s7020  |Vender:| oMErs | Amount | 58, 184.42)]
InvNo: MAY 2020 InvDesc: may omers deductions Invamt: 58, 184,42

[ chae: | 0029954 |pate: |  oss06/202¢  [Vendor:| pauL METHNER | Ameraat { 5995 00]
InvNo: §2020-05-31 InvDesc: may animal control InvAmt: 5995.,00

| charto: fop209ss {Date: | 08s/06/2020  [Vendor:| pETTY CaAsH | Amount { 5299, 18]
InvNo: MAY 2020 InvDesc: replenish petty cash InvAmt: $219.18
InvNo: JUNE 5 2020 InvDasc: petty cash replenish InvAmt: $80.00

[ chao: | oozasse |pate: | 08/06/2020  |Vendor:| pUROLATOR COURIER | Amount { 546, 62]
Invlo: 444661550 InvDesc: freight Invamt: $46., 62

[ Chao: | cozg0s7 |pate: |  o08/ces2020  {Vendor:| RECEIVER GENERAL | Amount { 516,887.33
InvNo: MAY 2020 InvDasc: may source deductions InvAmt: $16,887.33

| chado: [ gozasss |pate: | cmsoss/202¢  |vendor:| supErioR PROPANE INC. [ Amount ] 51, 079. 93]
InvNo: 30025807 InvDesc: po-propane InvAmt: 51,009.92

[ chapo: [ooz99s9 |pate: | 03/06/2020  [Vendor:| oM HugHsON | Amount { 51725.00
InvNo: MAY 26 2020 InvDesc: livestock call (1} may 26 InvAmt: 5$125.00

Chalo: | 929960 [pate: |  08/06/2020  |Vendor:| GorE BAY FIRE DEPARTMENT | Amount | 247 .00
InvNo: RE FEB 26 2020 TRAIN InvDesc: fd-training InvAmt: 542.00

[ chame: | oozass: |pata: {  oB/06/2c20  [vendor: pave mcDoWELL | Amount { $50.00]
InvNo: MAY 26 2020 InvDaesc: coyote pred {1} claim InvAmt: $50.00

| Chatto: | 0029962 |pate: | o08s06/2020  |Vendor:| winpows UNLIMITED | Amount { $3,003.91)
InvNo: g8RE12% InvDesc: june cleaning InvAmt : 53,003.91

*** End of Report ***

Report Total:

$62,670.84



System: 22/06/2020 3:41:12 M The Township of Assiginack Page: 1
User Date: 22/06/2020 CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User 10: delb
Payables Management

Rangeas : From: To: From: To:

Vendor ID First Last Chequebook ID First Last

Vendor Name First Last Cheque Number 0029967 0030005

Cheque Date First Last

Sorted By: Cheque Number

Distribution Types Included: All

| chawo: | cozo9067 [pate: [ 22/06/2020  |Vendor:| ALLEN'S AUTOMOTIVE GroLP [amount ] 5596, 55|
InvNo: 762834 InvDesc: fd-diesel exh.fluid Invhmt: $56.51
InvNo: 754270 InvDesc: spark plug InvAmt: $3.25
Invdo: 763966 InvDasc: 10woil #9 InvAmt: $167.69
InvMo: 763542 InvDesc: chain IrvhAmt @ $27.32
InwMo: 767940 InvDasc: hydraulic oil Inwhmt : 5$209.10
Inwho: 762025 InvDesc: welding wire Inwhmt: $58.75
InvRe: 1631500 InvDasc: cnffes InvAst: $29.98
InvNo: 752435 InvDasc: swivel/coffee Invimt: $43.95

[ chamo: | 0029968 [pate: |  22/06/2020  |Vendor:| BEACON IMAGES [Amount] s219.34]
InvHo: {531 InvDesc: gr § graduate gifts InvAmt: 5220.58
InvNo: 1934 InvDesc: 911 blanks InvAmt: 558,16

| Chawo: | no29969 [pate: [ 22/06/2020  |Vendor:| aemmisk constrRucTION INC | Amount { §3,117. 62|
InvNo: 13104-02358 InvDesc: cold patch InvAmt: $3,777.62

ChaWo: { 0029970 [pate: |  22/06/2020  [Vendor:| BELL CANADA [Amount | s24.01)
InvNo: 2020 06 01 InvDesc: toll free line InvAmt: $24.01

chgNo: | gozaem1 [pate: | 22/06/2020  |Vendor:| TOWNSHIP OF CENTRAL MANITOULIN | Amount | 550.00]
InvNo: JUNE 2 2020 InvDesc: dog pound use fees {lday) Invamt: $5C.00

| chawo: | gozaaiz Toate: | 22/06/2020  |vendor:| ciTy OF GREATER SUDBURY [ Amount] 5722 .67)
InvNo: (0104859 InvbDesc: april recyl.material InvAmt: 122,67

[ chao: | 0029973 [pata: | 2270672020 |vendor:| coopsR & SONS PLUMBING | Amount { 5169.50]
InvNo: 0254 InvDesc: pilumbing issue InvAmt: 5169.50

| chawo: | coz0974 [pate: | 22/06/2020  |vendor:| owavne ELLioTy | Amount § 581.00]
InvNo: JUNE i1 2020 InvDesc: fd-mileage/supplies InvAmt : 581.00

| chado: | gozoais [pate: | 2/06/2020 _ |Vendor:| EasTiink | Amount { 52,141.08]
InvNo: 12561135 InvDeac: infeo booth Invhmt: $97.3C
InvNo: 12561161 InvDesc: marina InvAmt: $80.92
InvHo: 12561144 InvDesc: arena InvAmt : $156.20
InvHo: 12561133 InvDesc: fd-interconnect Invhmt: $60.92
InwMo: 12561164 InvDesc: pw Inwamt : 5228.33
InvBo: 12561143 InvDasc: [ Invhst: $106.41



System: 22/06/2020 3:41:12 The Township of Assiginack page: 2
seriDatsan22/0¢6/2020 CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User ID:  deb
Payables Management

InvHo: 12561153 InvDess: s5 wip InvAmt : $178.22
InwHo: 12561150 InvDese¢: pnorisle Irvhant: $71.770
InvHo: 312561123 InvDesc: man streams InwAmt ; 5167.79
InvMo: 12561152 InvDesc: mtg wip Irwvhmt : 249,92
Inwlo: 12560048 InvDasc: mun.office Invhmt : $612.6%
InvNo: JUME 10 2020 MARINA  InvDesc: marina-dsl InvAmt: $55.32
InvNo: JUNE 10 7020 bW InvDesc: pw-dsl InwhAmt: $55.32

[ chavo: | oo299v6 |pate: |  22/06/202¢  [Vendor:| Ex> szRvICES INC. [ Amount { $6,188.05)
InvNo: 557411 InvDesc: landfill eca-sample/train.exp InvAmt: $6,168.05

[ cnaio: | goz9977 [pate: | 2:/06/2020  |Vendox:| gzrry STRONG | Amount { 5307.70]
InvNo: JUNE 22 2020 InvDesc: bldg insp/plan mileage InvAmt: $307.7%0

[ chaie: | 0029978 [pate: | 22/06/2020  [vendor:| nEniEY BOAT MANUFACTURING | Amount | 590, 40
InvNo: (666 InvDese: marina-lawnmower repair InvAmt: $9G.40

[ chae: | 0029979 Joate: | 77/06/2020  |Vendor:| zEroLp suppLY | Amount { 5311.37]
InvNe: 15768 InvDesc: starter repair H9 InvAmt: 5311.32

| chado: | cozassn [oate: | 2:/06/2020  vendor:| u ¢ R noBLE comsTRUCTION | Amount: { $593,25)
InvNo: 38525 InvDesc: top soil Invhmt: $593.25

| chato: | 0020991 [pate: [ 22/06/207c  [Vendor:| HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. | Amount | s1it, 90t .89
InvNo: JyNE 1 2020 MTG WTP  InvDasec: mtg wtp Invamt: $8, 790,17
InvNo: JUNE 2 2020 ICE PLAN InvDese: arena ice pint (estimate) InvAmt: $1,493.82
InvHo: JUNE 2 2020 DEPOT InvDesc: recycling depor {estimate) Invhmt: $91.17
InvHo: JUNE 2 2020 PW InvDaese:  pw Inwhmt : $276.4%
Invile: JUNE 2 2020 NORISLE InvDesc: qnorisie heritage park ITnwhmt : 564,37
InvNo: JUNE 8 2020 ADMIN InvDesc: mun.office InvAmt $185.94

| chaWo: [ nozasas [pate: |  22/06/2020  |vendor:| :ens cizan arr [Amount ] s254,25]
InvNo: 15388 InvDasc: emission test #7 InvAmt: $354.25

| chawe: | nozagss Toate: | 22/06/2020  |Vendor:] MANITOWANING MILL & HOME BUILDING CENTRE | Amount{ $113.83
InvNo: 0180443 InvDesc: light/cord {covid arenal InvAmt: $327.02

| chatio: | pozasas |pate: | 22/06/2020  [Vendor:| MANTTOWANING PHARMACY [Amount | sa83. 62]
InvNo: 124561 InvDesc: admin-hand sanitizers InvAmt: 528.89
InvNo: MAY/JUNE 2020 InvDesc: pec-prize baskets var.events InvAmt: $1354.73

[ chao: [ 029985 |pate: | 22/06/2020  |Vendor:| MANITOWANING FRESEMART | amount { s22.57]
InvNo: 00572236 InvDesc: admin supplles InvAmt: $5.64
InvNe: 00574236 InvDesc: admin-cleaning wipes InvAmt: £16.93

| chavo: | po29986 [pate: | 22/06/2020  |[Vender:| mMeG FENCING INC [ Amount | s6, 293, 20|
InvNo: 20533 InvDesc: hardware & fence ball diamond Invamt: $4,178.43



System:  22/06/2020 3:dl:l2 pM The Townsgship of Agsiginack o 3
user; Dacesx 22/06/2020 CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User ID:  deb
Payables Management

InvNe: 29676 InvDasc: pall diamond fencing/hardware InvAmt: $2,114.77

f chaNo: | 0029987 |pate: |  22/06/2c20  |Vendor:| MInISTER OF FINANCE [ amount ] $67,356.91)
InvNo: 131006701404011 InvDesc: april policing costs InvAmt: $23,086.00
InvNo: 131006200847011 InvDesc: march policing InvAmt : $23,086.00
InvNo: 130806201158011 InvDesc: february policing InvAmt: $23,086.00

ICtho: | 0029988 |pate: | 22/06/2020 |vendor:| M.1.5. MUNICIPAL INSURANCE SERVICES LTD. ]Mmmtl £51, 484, 76]
InvNo: JLTPS-284-2020 InvDesc: 2020/2i insurance InvAnt: $51,4B4.76

| chavo: | 0029989 |pate: | 22/06/2020  |vendor:| Msc 1nDUSTRIAL SuFFLY ULC | Amount { sa1s,41)
InvNo: 372622001 InvDesc: pins InvAmt: 524.99
InvNo: 3791463001 InvDesc: nuts/belts/disc/clnr/glove InvAmt: $890.42

| chavo: | 0029990 [pate: | 22/06/2020  [vendor:| new norTH FUELs Ine [Amount ] 51, 924.66)
InvNo: 544748 InvDesc: pw-diesel InvAmt: 56B86,36
InvNo: 544747 InvDeac: pw-dyed diesel InvAmt: $1,238.30

| Chato: | 0029993 |pata: | 22/06/2020  [vendor:| onTARIO CLEAN WATER AGENCY | Amount { $18,832.77)
InvNo: INVODODC002411 InvDasc: mtg wtp-turbidity analyzer rep InvAmt: $3,649.75
InvNo: INVOOOOG002414 Invbasc: april ss/mtg wtp/ww capital InvAmt: $8,702.57
InvNo: INVGOC0DD02374 InvDase: april ss wkp lighting repairs InvAmt: $1,319.65
InvMo: I[NVOOO00D02406 InvDase: mtg iift stn-polelight repair Invhmt : $1,511.05
InvNo: [NVOOO00002404 InvDase: g5z wep-turbidity analyzer rep InvAmt: $3,649.75

[ chawo: | co29902 [pate: | 22/06/2020  |vendor:| puroLaTor couriEr [ Amount | 5432.72]
InvNo: 444767812 InvDesc: landfill-eca-freight wtr sampl InvAmt: 5432.72

| chaMe: | go29993 |pate: | 22/06/2020  |vendor:| RaInpow DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD | Amount 582, 957, 64]
InvNo: 2020 2ND QTR REQ InvDesc: 2020 2nd gtr requisitien InvAmt: $82, 957,64

| ChaNo: | 5029994 |pate: | 22/06/2020  |Vendor:] RELIANCE HOME COMFORT | Amount{ s1o4.72]
InvNo: JUNE 9 2020 ADMIN InvDesc: admin-hwt rental Invhmt: $49.43
InvNo: JUNE 9 2020 PW InvDase: pw-hwt rental InvAmt: $55,29

[ chado: { cozagns |pate: | 22/06/2020  [vendor:| aomerTS FARM EQUIPMENT | Amount { s1,138.31]
InvNo: p74@67 InvDasc: sweeper bushes InvAmt: $1,135.31

ChaNo: | 9029905 |pate: | 22/06/2020  |vendor:| sTroNgco LiMITED PARTNERSHIP | Amount { 54.261.21]
InvNo: 00896673 InvDesc: repair clutch #9 InvAmt: $1,237.16
InvNo: 90870492 InvDasc: y-joint/washer replace.#9 InvAmt: $3,024.05

[ chato: | 0029997 |pate: |  2z/06/2020  |Vendor:| sUpBURY & DISTRICT HEALTH UNIT [ Amount] 53, 091.00]
InvNo: RC020034781 InvDesc: july sdhu levy InvAmt: 53,091.00

| chano: | 5029298 [pate: | 22/06/2020  [vendor:| superior propaNE INC. [Amount ] 5132, 78]
InvNo: 30104839 InvDesc: office-tnk rental serv.contret Invhmt: $97.18

InvNo: 30043331 InvDesc: pw-cylinder rental InvAmt: $11.87



System: 22/06/2020 3:41:12 M The Township of Assiginack Page: 4
[eaie sttt CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User ID:  geb
Payables Management

InvNo: 30043332 InvDasc: arena-cylinder rental Invhmt: $23.73

[chano: [oo20990 |pata: | 22/06/2020  |Vendor:| moarinc ONTARIO ASSOCIATION | Amount { 5676.87]
InvNo: 46762 InvDesc: pmembership InvAmt: SETE.87

[ chavo: | so3o000 |pate: | 22/06/2020  |Vendoer:| oRKIN CANADA CORPORATION | Amount { 5276, 00
InvNo: C-1465426 Invhesc: po-exterior spider treatment InvAmt: $226.00

| chamo: | co300c1 |pate: | 22/06/2¢c20  |vendor:| rErguson's [Amount] s162. 70
InvNo: 000005 InvDesc: pec-prizes InvAmt: $162.70

| chawo: | 0030002 {pate: | 22/p6/2020  [vendor:| Taacks & wHEELS [ Amount.{ 51,443.48)
InvNHo: p43842 InvDesc: shaft (mower) InvAmt: 5407.38
InvNo: p43571 InvDesc: lade/bolis/spline/wheel (mower InvAmt: $852.95
InvNo: pP43679 InvDaesc: belts/spline {mowar) InvAmt: 51B3.15

[ ehane: [oo30003 |pata: | 22/06/2020  |Vendor:} war suppLIES | Amount | 5531, 04]
InvNo: 232863 InvDesc: marina-g.bags/t.tissue/p.twls InvAmt: $205.26
InvHo: 232865 InvDesc: po-cinrs,g.bgs, p.twls InvAmt: $200.79
InvNo: 232866 InvDeac: admin-t.tissue InvAmt: 573.39
InvNo: 232629 InvDesc: admin-t.tissue Invamt: $81.60

[ ehario: | caaoons |pate: |  22/06/2020  [vendor:| wInpows UNLIMITED [Amount.] 59, 605. 6o}
InvNo: 885142 InvDasc: rdsde restrms-add'i clean.covi InvAnt: $9,805.00

| chawo: | 0p3coos |pate: |  :2/p6/2020  [Vendor:| xerox canmpA LTD. [ Amount | 51,999, 73|
InvNo: 85269166 InvDesc: monthly copier usage InvAmt: $216.62
InvNo: 50140488 InvDesc: copler lease InvAmt: $1,851.66

*h*

*** End of Report

Report Total:

280,596.58



Jate : 22/06/2020 The Towaship of Assiginack Page: 1
Time 1 11:31:46 AM

Payment # Amount Date Batch # Imployee :I  Empicyee Name Status Payment Method
(029963 22/06/2020 06/22C0M3 122 H038S, ALTON QUTSTANDING Cheque

0029964 22/06/202C G6/22C0M3 126 MacDONALD, DE3B03AH QUTSTARDING Cheque

3029965 22/06/2020 (6/22C0M3 133 3085, TRIDA OUTISTANDING Cheque

(329366 22/06/2020 C6/22C0¥3 2.9 JOKZS, CHRISTIANNA QUTSTANDING Chegue

2794 22/06/202C 06/22C0M3 10 w002, STIVEN OUTSTANDING Birect Beposit
2193 22/06/2020 06/22C0MB iig C00PZR, RONALD OUTSTANDING Birect Deposit
2196 22/06/2020  J36/22C0¥3 134 VIRTANEN, ANNZTIZ 0UTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2.97 22/06/202C (06/2200¥B 44 RZID, WALTER QUTSTANDING Direct Deposiz
2298 22/056/2020  06/22C0MB 183 MACIONALD, RO3ERT QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2.99 22/56/2020 06/22C0M3 168 STRONG, GzR’Y QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2200 22/06/2020 06/22C0¥3 169 YAGUIRZ, XzZlSZV OUTSTANDING Jirect Deposit
2201 22/06/2020 06/22C0OM3 211 ¥OGGY, ZUGH QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2202 22/06/2020 06/22C0M3 218 ¥COOWSLL, DAVID OUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2203 22/36/2020 06/22C0¥3 220 HRV, DAYID QUISTANDING Birect Deposit
2204 22/06/2020 06/22C0MB 22 VYAGUIRZ, ROBERT QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2203 22/06/202C 36722003 301 RO3INSON, Dz33Iz OUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2206 22/06/2020 06/22C0M3 323 WAITE, JACQUILING OUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
224 22/38/2020 06/22C0M3 329 Q3RIZN, CEIRYL CUTSTANDIKG Direct Deposit
2208 22/06/2020 06/22C0¥3 362 SAGLE, 20TV OUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2209 2270642023 Q6/22C0¥3 364 308D, XYLEZ OUTSTRNDING Direct Depegsit
22.¢ 22/06/2320 06/22COMB 365 3OWZRMAN, COLZ OQUTSTANDING Direct Deposi:
2211 22/06/2023  06/22C0¥3 3 LINTIR, CRYSTAL QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit

Tozal $22,623.11



Date : 08/06/2020 The Township of Assiginack Page: 1
Time : 11:52:44 AM

‘ayment # Amcunt Date Batch # Empioyee ID  Employee Name Status Payment Method
1029937 08/06/2020 06/08C0¥3 122 EOBBS, ALTON QUTSTANDING Cheque

1029938 08/06/2020 06/08C0OM3 126 MacDONALD, DEBORAH OUTSTANDING Cheque

1029939 08/06/202C 06/08COMB 133 BOND, FREDA QUTSTANDING Cheque

1029942 08/06/2020 06/08C0M3 219 JONES, CHRISTIANNA QUTSTANDING Cheque

21175 08/06/2020 06/08COMB 106 #00D, STIVEW QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
1276 08/06/2020 06/08C0M3 118 COOPZR, RONALD QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
1M 08/06/2020 06/08COM3 134 VIRTANEN, ANNETIC QUTSTANDING Birect sepesit
2178 08/06/2020 06/08C0OMB 140 RZI0, WALTER QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2279 08/06/2020 (6/CBCOMB i35 35CK, WILLIAM QUTSTANIING Direct Deposit
2180 08/06/2020 (6/CBCOM3 163 VACDONALD, ROBERT OUTSTANDING Jirect Deposit
2181 08/06/2020 06/08C0M3 168 STRONE, GERRY QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2182 08/06/2025 06/08C0M3 169 MAGUIRE, XELSTY QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2183 08/06/202C 06/0BCOM3 211 YOGGY, BUGh QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2184 08/06/2020 06/08J0M3 218 VCDOWELL, CAVID QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2185 08/06/2020 06/08COMB 220 ZAM, DAVID QUTSTANDING Birect Deposit
2186 ¢8/06/2020 O6/CRCOM 222 YAGUIRE, ROBEZRT QUTSTANDIING Divect Deposit
2:87 08/06/2020 06/08COM3 301 ROBINSON, DE3BIE QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2188 08/06/2020 06/08C0¥3 123 WrITz, JACQUELINZ QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2189 08/06/2020 06/0BC0M3 329 OBRIZN, CHEAYL OUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2190 08/06/2023 06/0BCOX3 362 SAGLE, EDDY UTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2191 08/06/2020 06/08COMS 364 BOND, KYLE QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2192 08/06/2022 06/08CCME 363 BOWZRMAX, COLE QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
2.93 08/06/2020  06/08C0MB 370 LINTIR, CRYSTAL QUTSTRN3ING Direct Deposit



RECEIVED
JUN 15 2520

APPLICATION TO THE
COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK

For the adjustment of taxes for the year 020&0 » for the Property described as:
Sy - coo~ecs -016 €2 —0C ~00
Roll # , Legal Description: De inol }S’t\ - houce

[ ) Sjondgﬁ WHoven p\d; Mam‘k_swm\m\cj;

Under Section 357 ( ) or 358 ( ) of the Municipal Act, 2001. Application #

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Telephone: QuANENRENNEERD

Name of Applicant:

Mailing Address: __
Telephone: ;

REASON FOR APPLICATION (please check appropriate circumstance)

Ceased to be liable to be taxed 357(1a) ( )
Became exempt 357 (1c) \(~' )
Fire / Damage 357 (d) ()
Mobile home was removed 357 () ()
Gross or manifest Error 357 (f) ()
Repairs / Renovations 357 (g) {)

Details of Application: ’—\_ure AN L\OQ%{ 3(1\/\ 3012'010
and rewoved _debris |, Sved remortd.  Swnall Burm shrudwe 1 Ps

_ Ne I o
Applicant’s signature and Datezp ‘ Y 1 " Ry




ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:

Original Assessment: RTC:

Original Land Value: I DGJ[ OOO Original Building Value:

Revisions due to Application:

Revised Land Value: Revised Building Value:

Treasurer’s Name/Signature/Date:

Assessor’s Name/Signature/Date:

TAX LIABILITY CALCULATION

Original Assessment X Applicable Tax Rate = Original Levy
Revised Assessment X Applicable Tax Rate X Period of/ = Revised Levy
Adjustment

Recommended to Council and Comments (if any):

Resolution #




Application made under Sec 357/358/359 of the Municipal Act, 2001

MPAC's RESPONSE

Owner name(s}

Roll number 5111-000-005-09602-0000
Property location @ OLIDAY HAVEN RD
Property description ASSIGINACK CON 1 LOT 53 RP 31R562 PART 1

Municipality/Local taxing authority ASSIGINACK TOWNSHIP

Application number

Application reason Demolition/Razed by Fire
Received date June 17, 2020
Claim relief period
Taxatton year 2020
2012 2016 Phase-In Assessment for Taxation Years
Property Assessed Assessed
Classification Value Value Uk 2018 2019 Ly
OWNRRURT 104,000 106,000 104,500 105,000 105,500 106,000
Total 104,000 106,000 104,500 105,000 105,500 106,000
2012 2016 Phase-In Assessment for Taxation Years
Property ~  Assessed  Assessed  ,,, 2018 2019 2020
Classification Value Value
OWNROTRT 17072 17,400 17,154 17,236 17.318 17,40
Total 17,072 17,400 17,154 17,236 17,318 17,400

MPAC Remarks

Process a Tax Application for the demolition of alt the structures except one smalt barn structure
effective January 30 2020

MPAC Representative: Murray Burnett
Date: June 19, 2020

RECEIVED
JUN 222010



THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2019



MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack (“the
Township™) are the responsibility of the Township's management and have been prepared in compliance with
legislation, and in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. A summary of the
significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to these consolidated financial statements. The
preparation of the consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on
management’s judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods.

The Township’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislative and regulatory requirements and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These systems’ are monitored and evaluated by
management.

Council meets with management and the external auditors to review the consolidated financial statements and
discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Freelandt Caldwell Reilly LLP, independent
external auditors appointed by the Township. The accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report outlines their
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Township’s consolidated financial
statements.

Mayor Treasurer

Date



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Corporation of
The Township of Assiginack

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack.
which comprise the statement of consolidated financial position as at December 3, 2019, and the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in accumulated surplus, and changes in net assets, and cash
flows for the year then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack as at December 31, 2019, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then endedl inaccdrdance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Busis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the organization in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Ganadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization’s financial reporting process.
g g p g B p gp



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if;
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management:

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as
a going concern,

¢  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures; and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit

FREELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Sudbury, Ontario






M N |
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018
2019 2018
3 3
Financial Assets
Cash 3,396,303 2,493,254
Term deposits 40,718 38,463
Taxes receivable (note 2) 476,370 463,321
User charges receivable 504,364 547771
Grants receivable - 60,529
Other accounts receivable 81,271 82,267
Investment in government business enterprise (note 3) 253,659 296,598
4,752,685 3,982,203
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 344,809 447,041
Deferred revenue 54,088 49 902
Deferred revenue - obligatory funds (note 4) 145,419 38,959
Long-term debt (note 5) 1,402,553 1,492,566
Obligations under capital lease (note 6) 110,746 134,932
Landfill closure and post-closure liability (note 7) 372,577 266,480
2,430,192 2,429,880
Net Assets (note 8) 2,322,493 1,552,323
Non-financial Assets (note 9)
Tangible capital assets (note 10) 16,123,849 16.395,140
Prepaid expenses 24,767 28,672
16,148,616 16,423,812
Accumulated Surplus 18.471,109 17,976,135

Contingent liabilities (note 15)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Surplus
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

Budget 2019 2018
b $ 3
Revenues
Taxation
Residential and farm 2,904,350 2,813,963
Commercial, industrial and business 134,695 132,902
Other governments and agencies 16,193 16,341
3,089,152 3,055,238 2,963,206
Deduct:
Amounts raised on behalf of the school boards 350,946 335,059 341,675
2,738,206 2,720,179 2,621,531
Government Transfers
Government of Canada 78.421 32,156 120,324
Province of Ontario 1,189,832 1,530,311 1,151,450
Other municipalities - 1,653
1,268,253 1,562,467 1,273,427
User Charges
Sewer and water charges 503,474 453,361 431,839
Fees and service charges 106,550 255,542 243,387
610,024 708,903 675,226
Other
Licences and permits 12,400 22,347 23,862
Investment income 30,000 57,157 36,906
Penalties and interest charges 65,000 58,552 73,365
Rents and other 55,525 117,587 68,256
162,925 255,643 202,389
Total Revenues 4,779,408 5,247,192 4,772,573
Expenditures
General government 850,562 789,038 912,038
Protection to persons and property 412,797 403,558 532,489
Transportation services 984,303 1,092,836 1,011,922
Environmental services 492 874 1,061,276 873,327
Health services 244,787 297,559 298,028
Social and family services 176,248 645,952 616,885
Recreation and cultural services 211,105 361,150 362,564
Plamgn'g and development 40,420 57,910 70,872
Total Expenditures 3,413,096 4,709,279 4,678,125
Annual Surplus before undernoted item 1,366,312 537,913 94,448
Loss from investment in government
business enterprise (note 3) - (42,939) (38,368)
Annual Surplus 1,366,312 494,974 56,080
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 17,976,135 17,976,135 17,920,055
Accumulated Surplus, end of year 19,342,447 18,471,109 17,976,135

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018
2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ 3

Annual Surplus 1,366,312 494,974 56,080
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (996,466) (398,820) (255,747)
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 670,111 674,422
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 22,974
Change in prepaid expenses - 3,905 6,080
Change in net assets 369,846 770,170 503,809
Net Assets, beginning of year 1,552,323 1,552,323 1,048,514
Net Assets, end of year 1,922,169 2,322,493 1,552,323

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Consolidated Statement of Cashflows
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019 2018
s 3
Cash flows from operations
Annual Surplus 494,974 56,080
Items not involving cash
Amortization of tangible capital assets 670,111 674,422
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 22,974
Decrease in investment in government business enterprise 42,939 38,368
Landfill site closure and post-closure liability 106,097 6,133
1,314,121 791,977
Changes in non-cash operating assets and liabilities
Taxes receivable (13,049) (33,046)
User charges receivable 43,407 101,034
Grants receivable 60,529 (31,572)
Other accounts receivable 996 6.434
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (102,232) 32,627
Deferred revenue 4,186 42,798
Deferred revenue - obligatory reserve funds 106,460 17,933
Prepaid expenses 3.905 6.080
1,418,323 940,265
Capital transactions
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (398.820) (255.747)
Investing transactions
Change in term deposits (2,255) 4,050
Financing transactions
Repayment of long-term debt (90,013) {95,364)
Repayment of obligations under capital lease (24,186) (22,928)
(114,199) (118,292)
Increase in cash 903,049 570.276
Cash, beginning of year 2,493,254 1,922,978
Cash, end of year 3,396,303 2,493,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Township are the representation of management. The
financial statements are prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards as recommended by
the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Township are as follows:

a)

Basis of Consolidation

i)

i)

iii)

Local Boards

These consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
of the Township and include the activities of all committees of Council and the following
local boards which are under the control of Council:

Assiginack Library Board

Assiginack Museum Board

Hilly Grove Cemetery Board
Joint Local Boards
These consolidated financial statements reflect contributions to the following joint local
boards, which are not under the direct control of council, as expenses in the consolidated

statement of operations:

Sudbury and District Health Unit
Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint local boards have not been
proportionally consolidated in these financial statements.

Proportionally Consolidated Entities

These consolidated statements reflect proportionally the Township’s share of the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of the following joint local boards:

Manitoulin Centennial Manor
Manitoulin Planning Board



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

iv)

vi)

Investment in Government Business Enterprise

The Manitoulin East Municipal Airport Commissicn Inc. is a government business
enterprise and is accounted for using the modified equity method. Each year the Township's
share of income from government business enterprise is recognized in the consolidated
financial statements and the investment in the government business enterprise is adjusted to
reflect the change in equity occurring during the year.

Accounting for School Board Transactions

The taxation. other revenues, expenses, assets and liabitities with respect to the operations
of the school boards are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Trust Funds

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Township are not consolidated,
but are reported separately on the Trust Funds financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

i)

ii)

Accrual Accounting

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they are earned and measurable;
expenses are recognized as they'are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods
or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay,

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. The Township provides for amortization using
the straight-line/method designed to amortize the cost, less any residual value, of the
tangible capital assets over their estimated useful lives. The annual amortization rates are as
follows:

Years
Buildings 20-60
Roads and bridges 20-40
Automotive equipment 10-25
Furniture and equipment 5
Water and sewer 5-80

Additions are amortized at one half of the annual rate in the year of acquisition.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

iii)

iv)

V)

Leases

Leases are classified as either capital or operating leases. Leases that transfer substantially
all of the benefits and inherent risks of ownership of property to the Township are
accounted for as capital leases. At the time a capital lease is entered into, a tangible capital
asset is recorded together with its related capital tease obligation to reflect the acquisition
and financing. Tangible capital assets recorded under capital leases are amortized on the
same basis as described above. Payments under operating leases are expensed as'incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Property tax billings are prepared by the Township based on assessment rolls issued by the
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation, Tax rates are established annually by Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts the Township is required
to collect on behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes.

A normal part of the assessment process is the issue, of supplementary assessment rolls
which provide updated information with respect 1o changes in property assessments. Once a
supplementary assessment roll is received, the Township determines the taxes applicable
and renders supplementary tax billings. Supplementary taxation revenues are recorded at the
time these bills are issued.

Assessments and related property taxes are subject to appeal by ratepayers. Tax adjustments
as a result of appeals are recorded when the result of the appeal is known.

The Township is entitled to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes. These revenues
are recorded in the accounts in the period the interest and penalties are levied.

Government transfers are recognized in the period that the events giving rise to the transfer
have occurred as long as: the transfer is authorized; the eligibility criteria, if any, have been
met; and, the amount can be reasonably estimated. Government transfers received before
these griteria have been met are recorded in the accounts as deferred revenue and are
recognized as revenue in the period in which all of these criteria are met.

Revenue from user charges and rents are recognized in the period in which the goods or
services are provided

Deferred Revenue — Obligatory Reserve Funds
The Township receives certain contributions under the authority of federal and provincial

legislation. These contributions are restricted in their use and, until spent on qualifying
projects or expenses, are recorded as deferred revenue.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

vi)  Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurgment
uncertainty. The effect of changes in such estimates on the financial statements'in future
periods could be significant. Accounts specifically affected by estimates in these
consolidated financial statements include the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets

and estimated landfill site closure and post-closure liability.

vii) Financial Instruments

The Township initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
adjusted by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at
fair value, the amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.

The Township subsequently measures its'financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost. except for investments in equity securities that are quoted in an active
market or financial assets or liabilities designated to the fair value category, which are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the

statement of operations in the period they occur.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, term deposits, taxes receivable,

user charges receivable, grants receivable and other account receivables.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued

liabilities, long-term debt and obligations under capital lease.

2. TAXES RECEIVABLE

The components of taXes receivable are as follows:

2019 2018
$ $
Taxes receivable 467,650 455,445
Interest receivable on outstanding tax balances 33,720 32,876
Allowance for uncollectible amounts (25,000) (25,000)
476,370 463,321

11



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

3. INVESTMENT IN GOVERNMENT BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

The Manitoulin East Municipal Airport Commission Inc. is 1/3 owned by the Township. As this
corporation is a business enterprise, it is accounted for using the modified equity method, as follows:

2019 2018
$ $
Long-term investment, beginning of vear 296,598 334.966
The Township's share of operating loss for the year (42,939) (38,368)
Long,-term investment, end of year 253,659 _296,598

The loss is included in Other revenues, Rents and other on the consolidated statements of operations.

Condensed supplementary financial information on the Airport is as follows:

2019 2018
3 $
Financial Position
Financial assets 203,235 130,191
Financial liabilities 195,274 110,674
Net assets 9,961 19,517
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets 712,363 834,166
Inventory and prepaid expenses 38,656 36,110
751,019 870,276
Accumulated surplus 760,980 889,793
Results of Operations
Revenue 195,473 187,015
Expenses 324,286 302,119
Net income (loss) (128,813) (115.104)
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

4. DEFERRED REVENUE - OBLIGATORY RESERVE FUNDS

A requirement of Canadian public sector accounting standards is that obligatory reserve funds be
reported as deferred revenue. This requirement is in place as legislation and external agreements restrict
how these funds may be used and under certain circumstances these funds may possibly be refunded.
The balances in the obligatory reserves funds of the Township are summarized below:

2019 2018
3 3

Deferred revenue, beginning of year 38,959 21,026
Contributions received during the year 123,754 61,154
Interest earned 1,602 414
Amounts recognized as revenue during year (18,896) (43,635)
Deferred revenue, end of year 145,419 38.959
Deferred revenue - obligatory reserve consists of the following:

Federal gas tax revenue 145,419 38,959




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

5.

LONG-TERM DEBT

2019 2018
3 b

BMQ Bank of Monireal demand term loan, repayable in monthly
instalments of $4,517 plus interest at the bank's prime rate of
interest per annum, unsecured, maturing May 2020 736,262 790,463
BMO Bank of Montreal demand term loan, repayable in monthly
instalments of $1,701, plus interest at the bank's prime rate of
interest per annum, unsecured, maturing June 2020 315,500 335,908
BMO Bank of Montreal demand term loan, repayable in monthly
instalments of $2,078, including interest at the bank’s prime rate
of interest per annum, unsecured, maturing February 2026 333,048 344,578
Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs tile
drainage loan, repayable in annual instalments of $3,872,
including interest at 6.0% per annum, unsecured, maturing
January 2026 17,743 21,617

1,402,553 1,492,566

Principal payments on the long-term debt over the next 5 years, are payable as follows:

2020 29,182
2021 89.818
2022 90,484
2023 91,179
2024 91,906
Thereafter 949,984

1,402,553




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019
6. OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE
2019 2018
3 $
Travelers Leasing Ltd. capital lease, repayable in monthly
instalments of $2,568 including interest at a rate of 5.25% per
annum, secured by a specific vehicle with a carrying value of
$164,726, maturing December 2023 110,746 134,932

The cost and net book value of automotive equipment under capital lease is $219,635 and $164,726
respectively.

Principal payments in the next 5 years are as follows:

2020 25,511
2021 26,909
2022 28,384
2023 29,942

110,746

7. LANDFILL SITE CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE LIABILITY

Under the environment law in the province of Ontario, there is a requirement for the Township to provide
for closure and post-closure care of all active and inactive solid waste landfill sites. Accounting
standards require that the costs associated with this requirement are provided for in the accounts over the
service life of the landfill site based on its usage on a volumetric basis. The reported liability is based on
estimates and assumptions regarding future events using the best information available to management.
Actual results will vary from the estimated amounts and the change in the estimate will be recognized on
a prospective basis as a change in accounting estimate in the year the change is determined.

The liability for closure and post-closure care represents the discounted future cash flows of estimated
closure and post-closure care costs using the following rates and assumptions:

Remaining capacity 25,000 m*
Remaining life 25 years
Closure and acquisition costs $600,000
Monitoring period post-closure 25 years
Annual monitoring costs $£10,000
Total estimated liability $647,339
Current estimated liability $372,577
Amount remaining to be recognized $274,762

Future cash flows have been discounted using a long-term interest rate of 4% and an estimated inflation
rate of 3%,



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

8. NET ASSETS (DEBT)

The balance on the consolidated statement of financial position of net assets from at the end of the year is
comprised of the following:

2019 2018
3 3
To be used:
- for the general increase in taxation and user charges (3,346,971) (3,335321)
- to be recovered from tax and user charges for the
repayment of long-debt and landfill liability 1,885,876 1,893,978

- for the general operations of joint and local boards 296,200

331,799
- for reserves and reserve funds 3,487,388 2,661,867
2,322,493 1,552,323

9. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Tangible capital assets and other non-financial assets are accounted or as assets by the Township because
they can be used to provide services to residents and ratepayers of the Township in future periods. These
assets do not normally provide resources to discharge the liabilities of the Township unless they are sold.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

11.

12.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO NON-CONSOLIDATED JOINT LOCAL BOARDS

Further to note 1(a) (ii), the following contributions were made by the Township to these joint local
boards:

2019 2018

$ $
Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board 368,873 359,165
Sudbury & District Health Unit 33,720 30,019
402,593 _389,184

The Township's share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of these joint local boards are as
follows:

2019 2018

% %
Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board 3.530 3.530
Sudbury and District Health Unit 0.459 0.459

TRUST FUNDS

Trust funds administered by the Township amounting to $189,503 (2018 - $186,011) have not been

included in the consolidated statement of financial position nor have their operations been included in the
consolidated statements of operations.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

13.

SEGMENTED DISCLOSURE

The Township is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of services to
citizens. Services include water, roads, fire, police, waste management, recreation programs, economic
development, land use planning and health and social services. For management reporting purposes, the
Government’s operations and activities are organized and reported by Fund. Funds were created for the
purpose of recording specific activities to attain certain objectives in accordance with special regulations,
restrictions or limitations.

Township services are provided by departments and their activities are reported in these funds. Certain
departments have been separately disclosed in the segmented information, along with the services they
provide, and are as follows:

General Government

General government consists of: Office of the Mayor, Council expenses, administrative services
(including clerks, elections, communications, legal and information technology services), human
resources and financial departments. Areas within the general government respond to the needs of
external and internal clients by providing high quality, supportive and responsive services. This area
supports the operating departments in implementing priorities of Council and provides strategic
leadership on issues, relating to governance. strategic planning and service delivery.

Protection Services

This section consists of fire, police, and animal control, building services, emergency measures and
management of Provincial Offences Act. Police services ensure the safety of the lives and property of
citizens; preserve peace and order; prevent crimes from occurring, detect offenders and enforce the law.
Fire Services is responsible to provide fire suppression service; fire prevention programs, training and
education related to prevention, detection and extinguishment of fires. The building services division
processes permit applications and ensure compliance with the Ontario Building Code and with By-Laws
enacted by Council.

Transportation Services
This area is responsible for management of roadways including bridges, traffic and winter control.

Environmental Services

In addition to the management of waterworks, this area is responsible for waste collection, waste disposal
and recycling facilities and programs. This section is responsible for providing clean, potable water
meeting all regulatory requirements and responsible for repairing breaks and leaks in the water system.

Health and Social Services
This _section consists of assistance to aged persons, cemetery services as well as the Township’s
contribution to the Sudbury and District Health Unit and Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

13.

SEGMENTED DISCLOSURE (continued)

Recreation and Cultural Services

This section provides public services that contribute to neighbourhood development and sustainability
through the provision of recreation and leisure service and provides management of arenas and leisure
facilities. This section also contributes to the information needs of the Township’s citizens through the
provision of library and cultural services and by preserving local history and managing archived data.

Planning and Development

The goal of this section is to offer coordinated development services in order to maximize economic
development opportunities, and to ensure that the Township is planned and developed in accordance with
the Ontario Planning Act, Provincial policies and good planning principles.

Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial information.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

14.

15.

16.

PENSION PLAN

The Township makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (OMERS),
which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of eight members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the
length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2019 was $54,411 (2018 - $54,997) for current service and is
included as an expenditure on the consolidated statement of operations.

At December 31, 2019, the OMERS pension plan had total assets of $109.4 billion'(20/8 - §111.8
billion) and an accumutated deficit of $1.53 billion (2018 — $2.64 billion surplus).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Township receives transfers from the governments of Canada and Ontario. Some government
transfers are subject to audit by the transferring government with adjustments, if any, repayable to the
transferring government. Audit adjustments, if any, are recorded. in the accounts in the year in which
they become known.

COMMITMENT

The Township has entered into a management services agreement with the Ontario Clean Water Agency
(OCWA) to operate and maintain the Town’s water treatment plant and distribution system. The
agreement is for a ten-year period ending December 31, 2027. Required payments in each of the next
five years are as follows:

]
2020 225,611
2021 230,533
2022 234,479
2023 238,518
2024 242,653
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

17.

18.

BUDGET

The budget adopted by Council was not prepared on a basis consistent with that used to report actual
results in these consolidated financial statements. The budget was prepared on a modified accrual basis
while Canadian public-sector accounting standards require the full accrual basis. The budget figures
include a transfer of the anticipated annual surplus to reserves. In addition, the budget expenses all
tangible capital acquisitions and does not include a provision for amortization expense. As a result, the
budget figures presented in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in accumulated surplus
represent the budget adopted by Council, adjusted as follows:

2019 2018
$ ]
Budget surplus approved by Council - -
Less: Budgeted transfers to (from) reserves and reserve funds 369,846 (487,663)
Add: Budgeted tangibie capital asset additions 996,466 1,533,922
Budget surplus per consolidated financial statements 1,366,312 1,046,259

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Transactions in financial instruments may result in an entity assuming or transferring to another party
financial risk. The Township is exposed to the following risks associated with financial instruments and
transactions it is a party to:

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party: to a transaction will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Township is exposed to this risk relating to its cash,
term deposits and various accounts receivable accounts.

The Township holds its cash accounts with large reputable financial institutions, from which
management believes the risk of loss due to credit risk to be remote.

The Towuship:is exposed to credit risk in accounts receivable which includes rate payers,
government and other receivables. The Township measures its exposure to credit risk with respect
to accounts'receivable based on how long the amounts have been outstanding and management’s
analysisiof accounts. Risk is minimized through managements’ ongoing analysis and monitoring
of oytstanding accounts receivable balances and collections.

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

18.

19.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity cannot repay its obligations when they become due to its
creditors. The Township is exposed to this risk relating to its accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

The Township reduces its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring cash activities and expected
outflow through extensive budgeting and maintaining enough cash to repay creditors, including
long-term debt and capital lease obligation principle and interest, as those liabilities become due.

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.

<) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Township is exposed to this risk mainly
in respect of its bank credit facilities,

The Township has minimal interest rate exposure on its bank credit facilities, which are variable
based on the bank’s prime rates. Interest expense incurred on the credit facilities is
$63,969 (2018 - $64,540).

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to year end, the COVID-19 global outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization in March 2020. The negative impact of COVID-19 in Canada and on the global economy
has been significant. The global pandemic has disrupted economic activities and supply chains resulting
in governments worldwide, and in Canada, enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the
virus and protect the economy.

These financial statements have been prepared based upon conditions existing at December 31, 2019 and
considering those events occurring subsequent to that date, that provide evidence of conditions that
existed at' that date. As the outbreak of COVID-19 occurred after December 31, 2019, its impact is
considered an event that is indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period and accordingly,
no adjustments have been made to these financial statements for the impacts of COVID-19.

Although the disruption from the pandemic is expected to be temporary, given the dynamic nature of
these circumstances, the duration and severity of the disruption and related financial impact cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time. The Township’s ability to continue to service debt and meet obligations
as they come due is dependent on its continued ability to generate cash flows. At this time, the full
potential impact of COVID-19 on the Township is not known
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Corporation of
the Township of Assiginack

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Trust Funds of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statements
of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Trust Funds of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack as at December 31, 2019,
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with'these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriateto pravide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the finaricial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease
operations; or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those char:éd with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit’evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going concemn. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going concern

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit

FREELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Sudbury, Ontario
TBD
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
TRUST FUNDS

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack Trust Funds are the
representation of management prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards. Since
precise determination of assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of
periodic financial statements necessarily involves the use careful judgement.

i)

iii)

Basis of Consolidation

The Trust Funds have not been consolidated with the financial statements of the Township of
Assiginack.

Basis of Accounting

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable,
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods
or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Financial Instruments

The Trust Funds initially measure its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
adjusted by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at fair
value, the amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.

The Trust Funds subsequently measure its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized
cost, except for investments in équity securities that are quoted in an active market or financial
assets or liabilities designated to the fair value category, which are subsequently measured at fair
value. Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of operations.

Financtal assets measured at amortized cost include cash.

2. CASH FLOW.STATEMENT

A cash flow statement has not been presented because it would not provide any additional information
which is'not readily apparent in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Assiginack Public Library Board of the Corporation of
the Township of Assiginack, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019,
and the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

[n our opinion. the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Assiginack Public Library Board of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack as at
December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We arejindependent of the organization in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada. and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis’of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users takefron the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management:

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists.,we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate thesoverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and \;hether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achicves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timisig of theaudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit

FREELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Sudbury, Ontario
TBD
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ASSIGINACK PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019 2018
$ $
Financial Assets
Cash 5,695 4,797
Guaranteed investment certificates 32,136 29,938
37,831 34,735

Total Assets being Net Assets (note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

33



[ I
ASSIGINACK PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures 2018
2019 2018
Budget (Actual) {Actual)
$ $ $
Revenues
Municipal contribution 41,685 41,685 41,685
Province of Ontario contributions 3,483 3.483 7,070
Government of Canada contributions 1,700 1,680 1,680
Donations and miscellaneous 500 900 1.590
Interest and fines - 468 341
Total Revenues 47,368 48,216 52,366
Expenditures
Wages and employee benefits 37,632 37,490 37,016
Office supplies 1,165 658 5,287
Books and other library materials and equipment 3,003 3,524 3,268
Membership and conference 1,200 724 1,237
Rent 1,200 1,200 1,200
Miscellaneous 2,100 489 1,063
Telephone 900 867 792
Insurance 168 168 168
Total Expenditures 47,368 45,120 50,031
Annual surplus (deficit) - 3,096 2,335
Net assets, beginning of year 34,735 34,735 32,400
Net assets, end of year 34,735 37.831 34,735

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSIGINACK PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Assiginack Public Library Board are the representation of management
prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards. Since precise determination of assets and
liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of periodic financial statements necessarily
involves the use of estimates and approximation. These have been made using careful judgement.

a)  Basis of Accounting

i)

i)

iii)

Accrual Accounting

Revenues and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual
basis of accounting recognizes the revenues as they become available and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as aresult of receipt of
goods or services and the creation of legal obligation to pay.

Inventories of books and supplies

No value is attached to inventories for municipal reporting purposes. Expenditures on
books and supplies are charged to operations as they are incurred.

Financial Instruments

The Board initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
adjusted by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently
at fair value, the amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.

The Board subsequently. measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost, except for investments in equity securities that are quoted in an active
market or financial assets or liabilities designated to the fair value category, which are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in
the statement of operations.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash and guaranteed investment
certificates.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.
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ASSIGINACK PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

2. NET ASSETS

The balance on the statement of financial position of net assets at the end of the year is comprised of the

following:
2019 2018
$ $
To be used:
- for the general reduction of user charges 35,148 32,052
- for the reserve fund 2,683 2,683
37,831 34,735

3. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A cash flow statement has not been presented because it would not provtde any additional information
which is not readily apparent in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
The Corporation of the Township of Assiginack

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Assiginack Museum Board of the Corporation of the
Township of Assiginack, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and
the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Assiginack Museum Board of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack as at
December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for,the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization’s ability to
continue as a'going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease
operations.ior-has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. .we ‘exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit’evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin'order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and'whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing ofithe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit

FREELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Sudbury, Ontario
TBD
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R
ASSIGINACK MUSEUM BOARD
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018
2019 2018
$
Financial Assets

Cash 78,009 65,589
Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 66,421 54,998
Net assets 11,588 10,591

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSIGINACK MUSEUM BOARD
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018
2019 2018
Actual Actual
$ 3
Revenues
Municipal grant 20,000 20,000
Province of Ontario 3,382 3,382
Admission, sales and other 4,003 3,331
Government of Canada 1,960 1,680
Total Revenues 29,345 28,393
Expenditures
Wages 20,453 20,616
Utilities 5,236 5,441
Repairs and maintenance 647 1,369
Telephone 1,173 1,081
Operating supplies and materials 702 688
Advertising and memberships 137 150
Total Expenditures 28,348 29,345
Annual surplus (deficit) 997 (952)
Net assets, begi_nning of year 10,591 11,543
Net assets, end of year 11,588 10,591

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



ASSIGINACK MUSEUM BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Assiginack Museum Board are the representation of management
prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards. Since precise determination of assets and
liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of periodic financial statements necessarily
involves the use of estimates and approximation. These have been made using careful judgement.

a)  Basis of Accounting

i) Accrual Accounting
Revenues and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual
basis of accounting recognizes the revenues as they become avaitable'and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a'result of receipt of
goods or services and the creation of legal obligation to pay.

ii) Financial Instruments
The Board initially measures its financial assets,and financial liabilities at fair value
adjusted by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at
fair value, the amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument,
The Board subsequently measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized
cost, except for investments in equity’ securities that are quoted in an active market or
financial assets or liabilities designated to the fair value category, which are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the statement
of operations.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash.
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

2. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A cash.flow statement has not been presented because it would not provide any additional information
which is not readily apparent in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statements of operations and changes in net debt for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally .accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada. and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation andfair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose/of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financiat statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall\presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify.during our audit

FREELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Sudbury, Ontario
TBD
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HILLY GROVE CEMETERY BOARD

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019 2018
5 3
Financial Assets
Cash 35,579 21,941
Accounts receivable 134 134
Total Assets 35,713 22,075
Financial Liabilities
Accounts Payable 1,581 -
Due to Township of Assiginack 47,795 37.497
Due to Perpetual Care Trust 8,966 6,226
Due to Monument Trust 1,962 1.210
Total Liabilities 60,304 44,933
Net Debt (24,591) (22,858)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HILLY GROVE CEMETERY BOARD
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Debt
Year Ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018
2019 2018
3 $
Revenues
Municipal contributions 9,000 9,000
Plot and monument sales 6,650 14,800
Opening and closing 3,450 1,800
Donations 200 -
Interest and other 20 -
Total Revenues 19,320 25,600
Expenditures
Wages and benefits 12,095 11,426
Repairs and maintenance 2,947 1,672
Interment fees 2,100 700
Plot and monument sales 1,900 5,500
Miscellaneous 1,671 1,135
Hydro and fuel 340 292
Total Expenditures 21,053 20,725
Annual deficit (1,733) 4,875
Net debt, beginning of year (22,858) (27,733)
Net debt, end of year (24,591) (22,858)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HILLY GROVE CEMETERY BOARD
Note to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board are the representation of management
prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards. Since precise determination of assets and
liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of periodic financial statements necessarily
involves the use of estimates and approximation. These have been made using careful judgement.

a) Basis of Accounting
i) Accrual Accounting
Revenues and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual
basis of accounting recognizes the revenues as they become available and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services and the creation of legal obligation to pay.
ii) Financial Instruments
The Board initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
adjusted by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at
fair value, the amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.
The Board subsequently measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized
cost, except for investments in equity securities that are quoted in an active market or
financial assets or liabilities designated to the fair value category. which are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the statement
of operations.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash and account receivables,
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include amounts due to the Township of
Assiginack, Perpetual Care Trust and Monument Trust.
2. TRUST FUNDS

Trust funds administered by the Board amounting to $106,454 (2018- $102,962) have not been

included in the Statement of Financial Position nor have their operations been included in the Statement

of Current Fund Operations.

3. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A cash flow statement has not been presented because it would not provide any additional information
which is not readily apparent in the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board — Trust Funds of the
Corporation of the Township of Assiginack, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2019, and the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies:

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board — Trust Funds of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Munagement and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization’s ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease
operations, or has norealistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged wvith governance are responsible for overseeing the organization’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we'exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whther due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain‘audit.evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we areirequired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit

FREELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Sudbury, Ontario
TBD
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HILLY GROVE CEMETERY BOARD

TRUST FUNDS

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

Perpetual Care Monuments 2019 2018
$ $ 3 3
Assets
Cash 72,660 22,866 95,526 95,526
Due from Cemetery Board 8.966 1,962 10,928 7,436
Total Assets being Net Assets 81,626 24,828 106,454 102,962

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HILLY GROVE CEMETERY BOARD

TRUST FUNDS

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

Perpetual Care  Monuments 2019 2018
$ $ 3 3

Net assets, beginning of year 78,886 24,076 102,962 96,000
Receipts

Sales 1,500 400 1,900 5,500

Interest earned 1.240 352 1,592 1,462

2,740 752 3,492 6,962

Expenditures - - - -

Net assets, end of year 81,626 24,828 I()J(S:I54 102,962

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HILLY GROVE CEMETERY BOARD
TRUST FUNDS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Hilly Grove Cemetery Board - Trust Funds are the representation of
management prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards. Since precise determination
of assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of periodic financial statements
necessarily involves the use of estimates and approximation. These have been made using careful
judgement.

a)  Basis of Accounting

i) Accrual Accounting
Revenues and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual
basis of accounting recognizes the revenues as they become available and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services and the creation of legal obligation to pay.

ii) Financial Instruments
The Trust Funds initially measure its financial asset: and financial {iabilities at fair value
adjusted by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at
fair value, the amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.
The Trust Funds subsequently measute its financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost, except for investments in equity securities that are quoted in an active
market or financial assets or liabilities designated to the fair value category, which are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in

the staternent of operations:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash.
2. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A cash flow statement has not been presented because it would not provide any additional information
which is not readily apparent in the financial statements.
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Alton Hobbs

From: Dave Ham <info@henleyboats.com>

Sent: June 29, 2020 2:57 PM

To: 'Tim Lee'; Alton Hobbs

Ce: ‘Ron Cooper’; 'Peter Lulechis’

Subject: RE: Rogers Creek Bridge - Township Assiginack

Hello Tim : Can you price it out both ways , at the same time can we get
second smaller bridge . | thing the smaller bridge is in much better conditio
n , however the council will have to decide which way

to go as we definitely have to do something..

Thanks very much Tim , how long to prepa
re the quotes ??

Dave H

From: Tim Lee <TLee@northernmat.ca>

Sent: lune 29, 2020 12:08 PM

To: Dave Ham <info@henleyboats.com>; 'Alton Hobbs' <ahobbs@assiginack.ca>

Cc: 'Ron Cooper' <assigroads@amtelecom.net>; Peter Lulechis <PLulechis@northernmat.ca>
Subject: Rogers Creek Bridge - Township Assiginack

Importance: High

Thanks Dave - Great photos - from the level of Lake Huron, its no wonder you couldn't get an shots under the
bridge From your photos - the bridge is in pretty rough shape and its a good idea to have closed it to traffic.

I will work out a budget price for you - do you want me to include installation? We can price the full project or
just cost of the bridge - this is really something that your own municipal staff could install. | can also provide
project management as well if you would like,

Based on the site and especially the span - my advice would be to go with a 60ft x 15'4 x 28" high Lessard
Modular Bridge. This would new bridge to span beyond the existing crib substructure - which could remain in
the water untouched. A new shallow timber substructure would be installed about 5 to 7 feet away from the
ends of the existing bridge. It would look like the inset image below.
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Based on the water elevation for Lake Huron - | would install the bridge so that the bottom of the flanges on
the bridge would be at the same elevation of the deck of the existing bridge (see inset photos).




Photo Above - Lessard Modular Bridge Elevation { Soffit = Existing Bridge Deck). The New bridge would span from
bank to bank and wouldn't require the support form the intermediate crib that is mid span in the waterway.

regards,

Tim

Tim Lee

Bridge Specialist, Eastern Canada
Northern Mat & Bridge LP
207221 Highway 9,

Mono, ON L9W 6J1

Cell: 705-644-3976
NEW Contact Email: tlee@northernmat.ca

Project Manager - Bridges, Roads and Resource Access
Lessard Welding, 4590 Regional Road 15, Chelmsford, ON POM 1L0

From: Dave Ham <info@henleyhoats.com>
Sent: Monday, June 29, 2020 8:53 AM

To: 'Alton Hobbs'

Cc: 'Ron Cooper'

Subject: RE: Emailing: DSC_0988, DSC_0977, DSC_0978, DSC_0979, DSC_0980, DSC_0981, DSC_0983, DSC_0984,
DSC_0985, DSC_0986, DSC_0987



Hello All : Forgot to give you the dimension of the smaller
bridge: 43ft long X 25ft wide

Dave
H

-----Qriginal Message-----

From: Dave Ham <info@henleyboats.com>

Sent: June 29, 2020 7:49 AM

To: 'Alton Hobbs' <ahobbs@assiginack.ca>

Cc: 'Ron Cooper' <assigroads@amtelecom.net>

Subject: Emailing: DSC_0988, DSC_0977, DSC_0978, DSC_0979, DSC_0980,
DSC_0981, DSC_0983, DSC_0984, DSC_0985, DSC_0986, DSC_0987

Hello Everyone : Here are photos of both
bridges taken June 28/20. Unfortunately | could not get any photos
of the underside of either bridge dueto high water . The larger
bridge is 50ft 3" long X 19ft, 8" wide. Tulloch Engineering should
have finer details on both structures.

Dave H

Total Control Panel

To: ahobbs@assiginack.ca Remove this sender from my allow list
From: info@henleyboats.com

You received this message becouse the sender is on your allow list.



® Public Health
Santé publique
SUDBURY & DISTRICTS

June 9, 2020

RECEIvEp
JUN 10 199

VIA EMAIL - info@assiginack.ca

Alton Hobbs

Assiginack Township

156 Arthur Street

PO Box 238

Manitowaning, ON POP 1NO

Dear A. Hobbs:
Re: Manitowaning Beach

This letter is to advise that Public Health Sudbury & Districts will once again be
conducting inspections and water quality assessments of all designated public
beaches in accordance with the Ontario Public Health Standards: Recreational
Water Protocol, 2019.

Part of every recreational water program is the pre-seasonal assessment of
each existing public beach within our inspection inventory. The purpose is to
determine whether the beach remains suitable for recreational use and
includes sampling the water for E. coli and conducting safety checks for
hazards that would render the beach unsafe. Pre-seasonal assessments will
occur between June 15 and June 26, 2020.

Between June 29 and August 28, 2020, Public Health will routinely inspect and
sample public beaches based on the following frequency:
e Monthly for beaches that have a satisfactory water sampling history
e Weekly for beaches that were posted with a swimming advisory notice
in the 2019 bathing beach season

Your designated public beach will be sampled as per the following frequency:

» Manitowaning Beach = monthly

Public Health will continue to address concerns related to public complaints
and blue-green algal sightings. Safety concemns identified through routine or
complaint-based inspections will be sent to you for immediate follow-up to
ensure the public’s safety.

A media release announcing the start of the seasonal public beach water
testing program is expected to be issued on June 12, 2020.

Sudbury

1300 rue Paris Street
Sudbury ON P3E 3A3
1: 705.522.9200
{:705.522.518)

Rainbow Centre

10 rue Eim Street
Unit f Unité 130
Sudbury ON P3C 5N3
1: 705.522.9200

f: 705.677.9611

Sudbury East / Sudbury-Est

11ue King Stieet

Box f Boite 58
St.-Charles ON POM 2W0
£:705.222.9201

f: 705.867.0474

800 1ue Cenlre Street
Unit f Unité 100 C
Espanola ON PSE 1)3
t: 705.222.9202

f; 705.869.5583

fle Manitoulin Istand

6163 Highway / Route 542
Box / Boite 87

Mindemoya ON POP 150
t: 705.370.9200

f: 705.377.5580

Chapleau

101 rue Pine Street £
Box / Boite 485
Chapleas ON POM 1KD
t: 705.860.9200

f: 705.864.0820

Toll-free / Sans frais
1.866.522.9200



Assiginack Township
June 9, 2020
Page 2

Itis essential that your facility continue to adhere to the most up-to-date provincial emergency
orders and public health recommendations as outlined in the attached COVID-19 Public Health
Guidance for Public Beaches document.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me directly at roccac@phsd.ca or at
705.522.9200 ext. 279, (toli-free 1.866.522.9200).

Sincerely,

K
N

Cynthia Peacock-Rocca
Manager, Health Protection

CPR:ar

Enclosure
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RESOLUTION NO.: 2020- (4 by, LD
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cD("jug' 211 DATE: June 3, 2020
R —
CARRIED: /
DEFEATED:
MOVED BY: DIVISION LIST FOR AGAINST

Councillor Constable

Councillor Ryman
Councillor Gregory

SECONDED BY: Councillor Malott

Councillor Ryman
Councillor stable

Mayor Robinson

WHEREAS Councll for the Corporation of the Municipality of McDougall received
correspondence dated May 14, 2020 from The Federation of Northem Ontario Municipalities
(FONOM) regarding issues discussed at their May 13%, 2020 virtual meeting;

AND WHEREAS the correspondence brought attention to AMO’s Discussion Paper “New
Ontario Provincial Police Detachment Boards: Building a Framework for Better Policing
Governance”;

AND WHEREAS AMO's discussion paper proposes that Northern Ontario District Social
Services Administration Boards (DSSAB) replace the current OPP Detachment Boards;

AND WHEREAS the FONOM Board has identified several issues with DSSAB Boards

replacing the curent Detachment Boards, and recognizes that Community Policing is
distinctive to each Municipality;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of
McDougall is in agreement with the opinion of FONOM, that the current DSSAB’s would not
be the best solution for overseeing the Northem OPP Detachments:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT a copy of this resolution be sent to FONOM and its
member municipalities, AMO, the Honourable Sylvia Jones, Solicitor General, and Norm

Miller, MPP for Parry Sound-Muskoka.



m The Corporation of the Town of Bracebridge

\\\ff‘r RECEIVED

JUN 12 2020
BRACEBRIDGE

The Heart of Musicoka

June 12, 2020

The Honourable Steve Clark,

Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
17th Floor, 777 Bay St.

Toronto, ON

M5G 2ES

Dear Minister Clark,

RE: Town of Bracebridge Resolution regarding the establishment of a Municipal Financial
Assistance Program to offset the financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic

At its meeting of June 4, 2020, the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Bracebridge ratified motion
20-TC-089, regarding the Town of Bracebridge support for the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM)
recommendations contained in their report titled “Protecting Vital Municipal Services”, as follows:

“WHEREAS the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) issued a report titled “Protecting Vital
Municipal Services” on April 23, 2020 which included recommendations to the federal government to
provide financial assistance for municipalities across the country;

AND WHEREAS the Associaticn of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) recognizes that a collaborative federal-
provincial effort is required to provide much needed financial assistance to municipalities and their May 14,
2020 letter (attached) to the Prime Minister and the Premier urges Canada and Ontario to extend their
successful collaboration through financial support for municipalities;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Town of Bracebridge supports the FCM recommendation
and requests that both the Federal and Provincial Governments establish a municipal financial assistance
program to offset the financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic;

AND FURTHER THAT the Town of Bracebridge supports the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO)
in lobbying the Provincial Government for financial assistance to support Municipalities in offsetting the
financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic;

AND FURTHER THAT this resolution be forwarded to the Honorable Steve Clark, Minister, Municipal Affairs
and Housing, local Member of Parliament (MP) and local Member of the Ontario Legislature (MPP), FCM,
AMO and its member municipalities, and the Muskoka municipalities.”

In accordance with Council’s direction | am forwarding you a copy of the associated memorandum for you
reference,

100G Taylor Courl
Bracebridgz ON
PIL 1R Canada

telephone: - (705}645-5264

comorate services and finance fax:  (706) 645 - 1262

public works fax.  (705)645-7525

www.bracebridge.ca planning & develnpment fax:  (705)645-4209




Please do not hesitate to contact me if | can provide any additional clarification in this regard.

Yours truly,

Lori McDonald
Director of Corporate Services/Clerk

Copy: Scott Aitchison, MP, Parry Sound-Muskoka
The Honourable Norm Miller, MPP, Parry Sound-Muskoka
The Federation of Canadian Municipalities
Association of Municipalities Ontario and member municipalities
Muskoka Municipalities



RECEIVED

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF SARNIA JUN 75 200
City Clerk’s Office

255 Christina Street N. PO Box 3018

Sarnia ON Canada N7T 7N2

519 332-0330 519 332-3995 (fax)

519 332-2664 (TTY)

www.sarnia.ca clerks@sarnia.ca

June 24, 2020
To: All Ontario Municipalities
Re: Long Term Care Home Improvements

At its meeting held on June 22, 2020, Sarnia City Council adopted the following
resolution submitted by Councillor Margaret Bird with respect to the conditions
in Long Term Care homes exposed by the pandemic:

That due to the deplorable conditions exposed by the pandemic
in LTC homes in the province, and because this is a time for
action, not just continuous streams of investigations,
commissions and committees, and because the problems have
been clearly identified, that Sarnia City Council direct staff to
send this motion to the 444 Ontario Municipalities, asking them
to urge Premier Ford to start implementing the required
resolutions immediately, as follows:

1. increasing hours for all part-time and casual labour

2. since the government provides funding for privately-
operated homes, they have an obligation to inspect these
homes and see that they are being properly run, and that funds
are being used for the benefit of the residents and not the huge
profitability of the operators, and

3. to end the neglect and unacceptable conditions being
experienced, each day, by our vulnerable seniors.

Sarnia City Council respectfully seeks your endorsement of this resolution. If
your municipal council endorses this resolution, we would request that a copy
of the resolution be forwarded to the following:



Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario; and

City of Sarnia, City Clerk’s Office
clerks@sarnia.ca

Sincerely,

()(fme_ =S o™
Dianne Gould-Brown
City Clerk

cc: AMO



CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MISSISSIPPI MILLS
3131 OLD PERTH ROAD - PO BOX 400 * RR 2 * ALMONTE ON - KOA 1A0

PHONE:  613-256-2064
FAX: 613-256-4887
WEBSITE: www.mississippimills.ca

VIA E-MAIL
June 19, 2020
Hon. Doug Ford

Premier of Ontario
doug.fordco@pc.ola.org

Hon. Steve Clark
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
minister.mah@ontario.ca

Hon. Vic Fedeli
Minister of Economic Development, Job Creation and Trade
MEDJCT.Minister@ontario.ca

Hon. Lisa MacLeod
Minister of Heritage, Sport, Tourism and Culture Industries

Minister.MaclLeod@ontario.ca

Hon. Stephen Lecce
Minister of Education
minister.edu@ontario.ca

Hon. Laurie Scott
Minister of Infrastructure
laurie.scottco@pc.ola.orq

Dear Premier and Ministers,

RE: Support for Rural Broadband

On behalf of the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills, this is
to advise you that the following resolution was adopted by Council at its meeting held on
June 16, 2020.

Resolution No. 246-20
Moved by Councillor Maydan
Seconded by Councillor Dalgity

WHEREAS in December 2016 the Canadian Radio-television and
Telecommunications Commission declared broadband internet an essential service
for Canadians;



AND WHEREAS access to internet in many rural communities in Ontario is fimited
or non-existent;

AND WHEREAS current broadband investment projects across Ontario will still
leave many residents unserved,;

AND WHEREAS the COVID-19 pandemic has underscored the digital divide
leaving many rural residents unable to participate in e-commerce, online schooling,
are unable to move businesses online or access healthcare and other services
online;

AND WHEREAS communities and municipalities are deveioping economic
recovery plans;

AND WHEREAS there may be potential federal and provincial funding for shovel-
ready infrastructure programs to kick-start the economy;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Municipality of Mississippi Mills calls
on the provincial and federal governments to include rural broadband investment
as part of the economic recovery shovel-ready projects for municipalities;

AND THAT Council direct staff to circulate this resolution to the Prime Minister of
Canada; the Federal Minister of Rural Economic Development; the Federal
Minister of Innovation, Science and Industry; the Federal Minister of Economic
Development; the Minister of Infrastructure and Communities; the Federal Minister
of Health; the Premier of Ontario; the Minister of Municipal Affairs; the Minister of
Economic Development, Job Creation and Trade; the Minister of Heritage, Sport,
Tourism and Culture Industries; the Minister of Education; the Minister of
infrastructure; and all Ontario Municipalities; the Association of Rural Municipalities
of Ontario; the Association of Municipalities of Ontario and The Federation of
Canadian Municipalities.

CARRIED

Should you have any questions please feel free to follow up with our office directly at

613-256-2064 or jharfield@mississippimills.ca
Kind Regards,

%eanne H;rﬁeld

Clerk



The Corporation of the Township of Assiginack

By-Law No. 2020-08

BEING A BY-LAW TO PROVIDE FOR THE LICENSING
OF OWNERS AND DRIVERS OF TAXICABS.

WHEREAS item c¢ of section 155 of The Municipal Act, R.S.0. 2001, ¢.25, as
amended, enables a Municipal Council to pass by-laws to limit the number of
taxicabs or any class of them.

AND WHEREAS section 150 of The Municipal Act enables a Municipal Council
to pass by-laws for licensing, regulating and governing any business;

AND WHEREAS Council wishes to regulate the number of taxicab businesses
operating within the township limits;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1) DEFINITIONS:
For the purposes of this By-law:

a) “CORPORATION” means the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack.

b) “COUNCIL” means the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack,

c) “DRIVER” means the driver of a taxicab licenced as such under this by-law.

d) “MUNICIPAL BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER” means the
Municipal By-law Enforcement Officer of the Township of Assiginack.

e) “OWNER” means a person who is the registered owner of a taxicab or
limousine.



BY-LAW NO. 2020-08
Page |2

f) “TAXICAB” means any vehicle with seating capacity of not more than six
(6) persons, exclusive of the driver, and used for hire for the conveyance of
persons, but shall not include a bus, ambulance or funeral hearse.

g) “TAXICAB LICENCE” means a licence to operate a taxic ab for a period of
up to one (1) year and expiring on December 31.

2) GENERAL PROVISIONS

a) TERM:
All licences issued under the authority of this By-law Shall be valid from the
date of issue until midnight on the last day of December next following.

b) SOLE LICENCE:
No license issued under this By-law is transferable or refundable.

¢) LIMITATION ON NUMBER OF LICENCES:
The maximum number of taxicab licences in force shall not exceed four (4).
“Broker Ownership” of taxicab licences is permitted, and is included in
these maximum numbers.

d) LICENCE FEES:
Fees applicable under this By-law shall be as prescribed by Schedule “A”,
attached to and forming part of this By-law, All fees paid to the Treasurer in
respect to driver’s licences shall be in consideration of administrative
expenses and shall be non-refundable.

3) REQUIREMENT FOR LICENCE:

a) OWNER:

No person shall act as or be the owner a taxicab or limousine unless licenced
as an owner under this By-law.

b) DRIVER:

No person shall drive or act as the driver of a taxicab or limousine unless
licenced as a driver under this By-law.



BY-LAW NO. 2020-08
Page |3

4) RENEWAL OF LICENSES:
All licences issued under this By-law shall be renewed on January 1 of each
year, payment of applicable fee.

5) DUTIES OF TAXICAB DRIVER LICENCEES:

a) No driver shall charge a higher fare or an additional fee for persons with
disabilities than for persons without disabilities for the same trip.

b) No driver shall charge a fee for the storage of mobility aids or mobility
assistive devices.

TAXICAB VEHICLE INFORMATION:

The owner shall ensure that owners and operator of taxicabs make available
vehicle registration and identification of information in an accessible format to
persons with disabilities who are passengers.

The owner shall ensure that all licenced taxicabs place vehicle registration and
identification information on the rear bumper of the taxicab.

6) LAPSE OR CANCELLATION OF LICENCE:

In the event that a licence issued under this By-law lapses for a period of more
than five (5) business days or is cancelled for any reason, any reapplication
shall be deemed to be new application and subject to the applicable fees.



BY-LAW NO. 2020-08
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7) FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS BY-LAW:

In the event that the holder of any licence issued under this By-law fails to

comply with any one or more of its provisions, the Municipal Clerk is

authorized to:

a) Declare the licence to be cancelled.

b) Advise the taxicab licencee’s insurers that the owner is no longer licenced to
operate a taxicab in the municipality of Assiginack.

8) PENALTY:

Every person who contravenes any provision of this By-law is guilty of an
offence and a conviction under The Provincial Offenses Act is liable to a fine of
not less than $2000.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED
ON THIS 7™ DAY OF JUNE, 2020

Dave Ham, Mayor

Alton Hobbs, CAQ



BY-LAW NO. 2020-08
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SCHEDULE “A”
TO

BY-LAW NO. 2020-08

OF THE

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK

LICENCE FEES
Taxicab Initial Fee $292.00
Renewal Fee* 146.00
Taxi Driver Annual Fee* $ 30.00

*Renewal Date shall be 1 January, each year.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
By-Law # 2020-09

BEING a by-law to allow and regulate the keeping of backyard chickens

WHEREAS Sections 9 and 10 of the Municipal Act S.0. 2001, ¢.25, as amended,
confer the power to a municipality to pass by-laws regulating or prohibiting
animals;

AND WHEREAS Section 103 of the Municipal Act confers the power upon a
municipality to pass a by-law for the seizure and impounding of animals being at
large or trespassing and the sale of impounded animals under certain
circumstances;

AND WHEREAS Section129 of the Municipal Act permits municipalities to pas
by-laws to prohibit noises likely to disturb inhabitants within the municipality;

AND WHEREAS Section 391 of the Municipal Act enables a municipality to
enact by-laws imposing fees or charges on any class of persons for services or
activities provided or done by or done on behalf of it;

AND WHEREAS Council is desirous to ensure that animals are kept and treated

in a humane manner and that the owners of animals provide good quality care to
them;

AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient to enact a by-law to regulate the
keeping of backyard chickens in the Municipality, that such a by-law be passed.

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

Definitions
1. In this by-law:

“Animal Control Officer” means an “animal control officer” as defined in by-
law #18-16.

“Being at large” means to be found in any place other than the property of
the owner of the chicken and “"be at large” has a corresponding meaning.

“Chicken” means an animal classified as Gallus gallus domesticus, of the
family Phasianidae of the Order Galliformes.

“Clerk” means the Clerk of the Municipality;
“Council* means the Council of the Municipality;
“Dwelling unit” means one room or a group of rooms, occupied or capable

of being occupied as the home or residence of one or more persons_and
containing only one kitchen or other facility for the preparation of meals;
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“Municipality” means The Corporation of the Township of Assiginack;
“Officer” Means a Municipal Law Enforcement Officer, a Provincial
Offences Officer or any other officer deemed by council to administer this
by-law

“Owner” includes a person who possesses or harbours an animal and
“owns” has a corresponding meaning;

“Public place” includes highway, public park, and other municipal property;

General

2.

ook w

A person may keep chickens in their backyard within the Municipality in
accordance with the provisions set out in this by-law. The provisions in this
by-law shall only be applied to lots smaller than 2 hectares within the
Municipality in residential and shoreline residential zones.
No owner shall allow or permit their chicken to be at large.
No person shall keep a rooster.
No person shall keep more than five chickens on a lot.
Any owner shall ensure all chicken coops shall:
1. Be located in only the rear yard, and
2. Fully enciose the chickens and prevent from escaping.
No person shall keep a chicken coop closer than:
1. Five (5) metres from the rear lot line of the lot on which the chicken
coop is located, and
2. Five (5) metres from any side lot line of the lot on which the chicken
coop is located.
Any owner shall ensure dead chickens are disposed of immediately and in
any event, within 48 hours.
No owner shall fail to have hygienic storage of and prompt removal of
chicken feces.

10. A person who keeps one or more hens must:

1. Provide each hen with at least
a. 0.37 m? of coop floor area, and
b. 0.92 m? of roofed outdoor enclosure;

2. Provide and maintain a floor of any combination of vegetated or
bare earth in each outdoor enclosure;

3. Provide and maintain, in each coop, at least one perch, for each
hen that is at least 15cm long, and one nest box;

4. Keep each hen in the enclosed area at all times:

9. Provide each hen with:

Food,

Water,

Shelter,

Light,

Ventilation,

Veterinary care, and

~pooTH
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g. Opportunities for essential behaviours such as
scratching, dust-bathing, and roosting, all
sufficient to maintain the hen in good health;

6. Maintain each hen enclosure in good repair and sanitary condition,
and free from vermin and obnoxious smells and substances;

7. Construct and maintain each hen enclosure to prevent any rodent
from harbouring underneath or within it or within its walls, and to
prevent entrance by any other animal;

8. Keep a food container and water container in each coop;

9. Keep each coop locked from sunset to sunrise;

10. Remove leftover feed, trash, and manure in a timely manner,

11. Store manure

a. With a fully enclosed structure
b. In quantities not exceeding on cubic metre at a time;

12. Remove all other manure not used for fertilizing forthwith;

13. Follow biosecurity procedures recommended by Canadian Food
Inspection Agency;

14. Keep hens for personal use only, and not sell:

a. Eggs,

b. Manure,

¢. Meat, or

d. Other products derived from hens;

15. Not slaughter a hen on the propenrty;

16. Not dispose of hen except by delivering it to a farm, abattoir,
veterinarian, mobile slaughter unit, or other facility that has the
ability to dispose of hens lawfully; and

17. Not keep hen in a cage.

Powers of Officer

11. Pursuant to section 436 of the Municipal Act, 2001, an officer may enter
onto and across any lands, at any reasonable time, to conduct an
investigation or inspection to ensure the provisions of this by-law are being
complied with.

12. Every chicken found running at large contrary to the provisions of this by-
law may be seized and impounded by an Animal Control Officer or their
designate, and impounded in the Animal Shelter designated by council. An
owner has three days excluding holidays, in which they have the right to
redeem an impounded chicken from the Animal Control Officer. If claimed
within the aforementioned time period, chickens may be redeemed for
pound fees levied at the rate imposed by the Municipality and any
fees/fines determined in the Schedules.

13.No person shall interfere with or hinder an officer or any agent of the

Corporation of the Township of Assiginack in the performance of any duty
of such agent.

Severability
14.1f a court of competent jurisdiction should declare any section or part of
any section of this by-law to be invalid, such sections or part of a sections
shall not be construed as having persuaded or influenced council to pass



iv

the remainder of the by-law and it is hereby declared the remainder of the
by-law shall remain valid and in force.
Penalty
15. Every person who contravenes any provision of this bylaw is guilty of an
offence and upon conviction is liable to a fine as provided for by the
Provincial Offences Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter P.33, as amended.
16.When a person has been convicted of an offence under this by-law:
a. The Ontario Court of Justice, or
b. Any court of competent jurisdiction thereafter may, in addition to
any other penalty imposed on the person convicted, make an order
prohibiting the continuation or repetition of the offence by the
person convicted.
Term
17.This by-law shall remain in force and effect for a period of One (1) year
from the date of final reading and passage. The by-law maybe extended
by amendment from time to time.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time, the 7th day of July, 2020

READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed, this,7th day of July,
2020

David Ham, MAYOR

Alton Hobbs, CAO/DEPUTY CLERK



Schedule “A” to By-Law 2020-09

Fees
1. Bail First Offence: $30.00
Second Offence: $45.00

Third and all subsequent $60.00

2. Impound Fees Summer $20.00/day
Winter (Nov.1 — Mar 31) $25.00/day



